
Draft

                                                                                                                          

STEVENAGE DEVELOPMENT BOARD meeting 
AGENDA

10.00am-12.00pm
Thursday, 28th January 2021

To be held by tele-conference (via Zoom)

1. Welcome and Chair’s opening comments

2. Apologies for absence

3. Minutes – Stevenage Development Board – 27 October 2020 / Matters 
Arising
Pages 1 – 6

4. Conflicts of interest and Openness         Standing item
Latest List attached (Pages 7 - 8)

5. Regeneration Programme Update Presentation

6. Town Deal – Feedback from discussions with Presentation
Government
Town Deal Summary attached (Pages 9 - 16)  

7. Feedback from Generation Stevenage Event and Presentation
Next Steps

8. Any Other Business

9. Dates of Future Meetings

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

STEVENAGE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
MINUTES

Date: Tuesday, 27 October 2020
Time: 10.00am

Place: Virtual (via Zoom)

Present: Adrian Hawkins (Independent Chair)
Matt Partridge (Chief Executive, Stevenage Borough Council)
Councillor Sharon Taylor (Stevenage Borough Council)
Tom Pike (Stevenage Borough Council)
Councillor John Gardner (Stevenage Borough Council)
Chris Barnes (Stevenage Borough Council)
Dave Wells (Stevenage Borough Council)
Annie Piper (Stevenage Borough Council)
Lucy King (Stevenage Borough Council)
Councillor David Williams (Hertfordshire County Council)
Patsy Dell (Hertfordshire County Council)
Adam Wood (Hertfordshire LEP)
Norman Jennings (Hertfordshire LEP)
Briege Leahy (Herts Chamber of Commerce)
Martha Lytton Cobbold (Knebworth House)
Charlotte Blizzard Welch (Citizens Advice Bureau)
Ed Jordan (WENTA)
Zahid Latif (Catapult)
Claire Dicks (MBDA)
Kit Davies (North Herts College)
Kevin Cowin (MACE)
Steve Finlan (The Wine Society)
Karen Hillen (BEIS)
Malcolm Everly (Airbus)
James Latham (Stevenage Bioscience Catalyst)
Sarah Brierley (East and North Hertfordshire NHS Trust)
Julie Newlan (University of Hertfordshire)
Andrew Fisher (Barton Willmore)
Graeme Collinge (Genecon)

Start Time: 10.00amStart / End 
Time: End Time: 11.10am

1  WELCOME AND CHAIR'S OPENING COMMENTS 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and advised that the main item of 
business was to formally sign off the Town Investment Plan prior to submission to 
the Government.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2

The Chair then updated the Board on the current position with regard to the recently 
approved SG1 Planning Application.  He advised members that Stephen McPartland 
MP had written to the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government to request that the Application be called in for a number of reasons 
including on the grounds of a lack of affordable housing.  At present, the Secretary 
of State has issued a holding order to allow time for the Department to decide if the 
application needs to be formally called in.  It is hoped that the holding order would be 
determined in the next 6-8 weeks.

All Members of the Board agreed the importance for the request to be assessed and 
released by the Secretary of State in a timely manner.

Kevin Cowin (MACE) commented on the eventful week for Stevenage which had 
culminated in 2 years of hard work and commitment to the SG1 Application.  He 
thanked all Members for their overwhelming level of support and although frustrated 
with the actions of the MP advised that MACE had made strong representations to 
the Government this week in response.

Mace were also now looking at options to accelerate the site clearance but would be 
in the hands of the Government and their response to the call-in request.

Councillor David Williams, Herts County Council advised that he would be writing to 
the Secretary of State in his role as Chair of the Herts Growth Board and would 
share a copy of the letter with the Board Members.

Councillor Sharon Taylor, Stevenage Borough Council, expressed her frustration 
regarding the lack of engagement from the MP from the very start of the planning 
process as well as his refusal to engage with the work of the Development Board, 
despite having a standing invitation to all meetings.

The Chair and Councillor Taylor also expressed their thanks to MACE and the SBC 
Regeneration and Planning Teams for the enormous amount of hard work and 
commitment to this application and being able to draw together all the complexities 
of the Plan to reach this stage.

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

The Board was advised that apologies for absence had received from Stephen Ward 
(Catapult), Duncan Forbes (East & North Herts NHS Trust), Simon Russian 
(Montagu Evans LLP), Greg Westover (Legal and General), Charles Amies (Homes 
England) and Sally Ann Forsyth (Stevenage Catalyst).

3  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND OPENNESS 

The Board received the latest conflict of interests list.

Page 4



3

4  MINUTES - STEVENAGE DEVELOPMENT BOARD - 3 SEPTEMBER 2020 / 
MATTERS ARISING 

It was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Stevenage Development 
Board held on 3 September 2020 be approved as a correct record.

5  REGENERATION UPDATE 

Chris Barnes (Assistant Director of Regeneration, SBC), gave a presentation and 
provided an update to the Board on:

 Town Square/North Block transitioning into the final stages with workspace 
for 200 jobs as well as a ground floor restaurant with completion hoped for in 
November 2020;

 The bus interchange enabling works which were underway; contractors were 
now on site and an appointment would be made very soon to the main 
contract;

 The fact that there had been good commercial interest despite challenging 
circumstances;

 The milestone of the SG1 planning application approval;
 Update on the work to the Town Centre public realm.

Chris advised it should be borne in mind that there had been a clear increase in 
costs of works due to uncertainties as a result of the Covid Pandemic as well as the 
potential for a no-deal Brexit.

The Board was pleased to note that, as a result of the works around Queensway 
North, constructive discussions had been held with other Town Centre landlords 
around the regeneration of their buildings.

In relation to the Matalan site, progress was being made including a virtual 
consultation which had recently been undertaken by the developers.

The Chair thanked Chris for his updates.

6  TOWN INVESTMENT PLAN 

The Draft Stevenage Town Investment Plan (TIP) had been circulated to all 
Members of the Board for final comment prior to the Board meeting.  The draft had 
been considered by the Government’s Check and Challenge process in early 
October and the feedback received had been incorporated within the plan. The 
feedback included:

 The Plan told an impactful story;
 Showed a professionalism;
 Refinements were suggested to the narrative;
 Powerful and concise.

Overall, the feedback was that the Plan showed the improvements in the Town and 
the future plans for the benefit of Stevenage.  It was a challenge to attract people to 

Page 5



4

the town but projects such as the heritage centre and museum and the focus on the 
cultural and community aspects would go a long way to achieving this.

Comments made by the Board members included:

 The TIP unlocked the wider strategy for the longer term aspirations of all 
sectors in Stevenage;

 It was really transformative for the town, for example, in terms of health care 
delivery;

 It was evidence of the community working together across all sectors 
including in response to the Covid pandemic.  The Plan could be used not 
only for Stevenage but could contribute to aspirations across the whole of the 
UK;

 Partnership working at its best;
 Historic England praised the strength of the document which would support 

an amazing opportunity to learn about the heritage of Stevenage alongside 
the New Town movement;

 Thanks were given to the LEP and HCC for their support in pulling together 
the Plan.

The Board was pleased to note that the quote from Mark Bretton (Herts LEP) would 
be finalised and included in the document, alongside those of Councillor Sharon 
Taylor (SBC) and Councillor David Williams (HCC).

Kevin Cowin (MACE) commented on the strength of the TIP which would have a 
huge impact on the Town. He advised that he had consulted with the CE of MACE 
and Sir Howard Bernstein who had both made positive comments on the document.

Tom Pike, Strategic Director SBC, thanked all colleagues for their work on the Plan.

It was agreed that if there were any final tweaks or comments that any Board 
Member wished to make before the Plan’s submission to the Government at the end 
of the week, they would need to make them by the end of the day to ensure 
consideration and if appropriate inclusion in the document.

In response to a question, Karen Hillen (BEIS) advised that the process once the 
Government had received the Plan was for an initial assessment to be undertaken 
followed by a check/challenge session hopefully in mid-December.

Final thanks were then given to the Chair for his leadership and energy and his 
moving introduction at the start of the Plan.

It was RESOLVED that the Stevenage Town Centre Investment Plan be adopted by 
the Board, subject to any minor changes that the Chair and development team make 
to the document and be submitted to the Government. 

7  ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Councillor David Williams reported that the County Council had included a scheme 
addressing the gap in the cycle route provision between Stevenage Old Town and 

Page 6



5

the Lister Hospital in a bid for Government Funding from the Emergency Active 
Travel Fund.  This was currently awaiting DfT approval and he would report back as 
soon as the outcome was known.

Cllr Williams advised that he would send details of the bid to Sarah Brierley (East & 
North Herts NHSTrust).

8  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

To be confirmed.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



STEVENAGE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

DECLARED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST LIST

NAME & ORGANISATION CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Adrian Hawkins
(Independent Chair)

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Councillor Sharon Taylor
(Stevenage Borough Council)

Member of Stevenage Borough Council
Member of Hertfordshire County Council
Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

County Councillor David Williams
(Hertfordshire County Council)

Member of Hertfordshire County Council
Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board
University of Hertfordshire
Chair of Hertfordshire Growth Board
Local Government Minister’s Economic Recovery 
Group

Adam Wood
(Hertfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership)

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Norman Jennings
(Hertfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership)

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Kit Davies
(North Herts College)

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Claire Dicks
(MBDA)

Local Enterprise Envoy

Sally Ann Forsyth
(Stevenage Bioscience Catalyst)

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



November 2020

Stevenage Town Investment Plan

www.Stevenage-Even-Better.com/my-town

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



The Heart of a town lies in its people

Page 12



Stevenage Development Board
An independent voice delivering for the people of Stevenage

Adrian Hawkins OBE 
Chairman, Stevenage Development Board

“Our vision is ambitious, our plan is 
deliverable, and the message is simple: 
investing £50m in the future of Stevenage is 
an investment in the future of our country, 
in the future of our children, and will 
unleash over £600m of private investment 
to supercharge UK businesses, as we once 
again unify in a time of great national need, 
and set a new blueprint for innovation at the 
heart of a 21st Century New Town. You will 
hear about skills, culture, and town centre 
regeneration and how all will play their 
part in unlocking Stevenage’s potential and 
levelling-up opportunities for our residents.

I am a child of a New Town, literally. Born in 
Stevenage in the 1950s in my parents’ council 
house, I grew up, made friends and was 
educated within my home town. It provided 
the safe haven for me, my siblings and many 
other families to develop and progress 
throughout our lives, very similarly to how the 
town was envisaged; Stevenage as a place 
gave back directly to its people.

It is easy to underestimate the scale of 
challenge facing Stevenage; as a town located 
in ‘wealthy’ Hertfordshire, its pockets of deep 
deprivation often glossed over in high-level 
data; the focus on the opportunities ‘in’ 
Stevenage, not ‘for’ Stevenage. We face a 
profound fork in the road – the opportunity to 

Stevenage Development 
Board members
In March 2020, The Stevenage Development 
Board was established to oversee the 
development of a Town Deal for Stevenage. 
The Board’s role is to provide strategic 
leadership and to set out a Town Investment 
Plan with a clear vision, strategy and delivery 
proposals in place, which reflect the ambitions 
of, and deliver for, local people. The Board 
consists of key stakeholders from public sector 
organisations, private businesses, and not-for-
profit organisations, to ensure a diverse range 
of views are represented.

level-up a community that is being left behind, 
whilst simultaneously releasing the handbrake 
on growth for the UK’s fastest-growing science 
and technology sectors. That growth cannot 
be allowed to dissipate from Stevenage; we 
must harness the potential of our location and 
amazing businesses to grow a critical mass 
that drives the region’s economy, but to do so 
in a way which brings our local people with us 
rather than leaving them behind. Our £50m 
Towns Fund proposal will achieve just that, 
through a range of interventions including 
delivery of a skills & technology centre, 
provision for innovative commercial space, 
investment in the town’s key facilities and 
unlocking large-scale regeneration.”

Stevenage Development Board

Page 13



You said...We did.  
Engaging with the community

Visitor Centre and MyTown 
Feedback Topics - Present

13.3%

6.4%

29.6%

9.5%
41.2%

Accessibility & Transport

Community & Aspiration 

Creating Great Spaces

Other

Vibrant Town Centre Offer

Engaging with all parts of the community, and using your views to shape the proposals, is 
a key focus of the Stevenage Town Investment Plan. We are delighted that so many people 
have got involved so far, and look forward to delivering projects alongside the community.

You said, we did...
your feedback has included 
comments such as ...

“Make more of the 
fact we are the UK’s 
first New Town”

“New and improved 
sports and leisure 
facilities”

“Upgraded roads 
and pedestrian 
paths”

Page 14



A 21st Century New Town vision – 
the ‘STEM City’ of the future
As the UK’s first New Town, Stevenage was founded on innovation, with a pioneering approach that 
set a blueprint for building new communities across the UK and Europe. Our vision is to build on 
our New Town values and unlock growth in some of the UK’s cutting-edge sectors, in a way which 
promotes and delivers opportunities for local people.

STEVENAGE 
A 21ST CENTURY 

NEW TOWN

Transforming our 
Town Centre as a key 
place of opportunity 
and integration for 

business, residents and 
visitors

Upskilling 
and providing 

opportunities for 
all our people 

to benefit from 
innovation & 

growth

Embracing 
sustainable 
travel to maximise 
the benefits of our 
strategic location and 
link our communities 
with jobs and leisure

Supercharging 
the growth of 

our national and 
international 

business base

Reflecting and 
Re-interpreting 
our New Town 
heritage  
for future 
generations

The Future Vision 
for Stevenage

Regional / National Outcomes 
	9 Stevenage – the heart of the UK’s Bioscience and Life Science 

capabilities

	9 Designation by the DIT as a High Opportunity Area for Cell & Gene 
Therapy

	9 Identified by the Government as one of six Life Science Opportunity 
Zones (2019) and centre stage in the Government’s two Life Science 
Sector Deals (2018)

	9 Stevenage – responsible for 7% of the global Cell & Gene therapy 
market, 27% of Europe. Unique opportunity for Stevenage to grow 
its global market share further and benefit from projected growth of 
CAGR 30% by 2025, worth an estimated £750m p.a to Stevenage’s 
economy, and up to 5,000 jobs at a wide range of levels and access 
points.

	9 Unrivalled opportunity for the Towns Fund to support this strategic 
potential for UK plc

	9 Boost regional economic recovery from the impact of Covid-19.

	9 Restore and celebrate the county's first New Town as a place of 
hope and aspiration.

	9 Deliver the Government's clean growth and levelling up agendas.

Local Outcomes 
	9 Diversifying the town’s retail offer

	9 Delivering new employment space

	9 Radically enhancing public realm 

	9 Building an evening economy

	9 Creating footfall and activity boosting post-Covid recovery

	9 Unlocking infrastructure

	9 Enabling private sector investment 

	9 Establishing a gateway for international business and visitors 

	9 Securing new locations for high value business, innovation and 
incubation space 

	9 Creating connections between jobs, skills and people

	9 Delivering critical mass at a key interface point between Bioscience 
cluster and town centre

	9 Providing for skills infrastructure

	9 Transforming Stevenage’s image

	9 Levelling-up skills and employment for local people

	9 Improved sustainability of transport network

	9 An arts and culture offer that is accessible and attractive

	9 Deliver clear pathways to employment for young people

What does this mean for me? 

Page 15



1

1

73

Stevenage Town Investment Plan projects

Stevenage Town Investment Plan projects
Stevenage Technology & 
Innovation Centre
New 4,000sqm State of the 
art Innovation & Technology 
Centre to be operated by 
North Hertfordshire College in 
partnership with key businesses 
to provide new training 
opportunities.

Station Gateway 
Much of the town’s original 
New Town infrastructure has 
aged, leaving facilities that 
are no longer fit for purpose 
for the town’s businesses and 
residents. The Gateway provides 
an opportunity to address 
this and to transform an area 
characterised by roads, surface 
level car parking and poor-quality 
buildings into a new thriving 
commercial and residential 
quarter for the town.

4.1

3.4

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the
permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown
Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Revision Date Drn Ckd
- - - -

ScaleDate

RevisionProject No Drawing No

Drawing Title

Project

Town Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Infrastructure & Environmental Planning ●

Heritage ● Graphic Communication ●
Communications & Engagement ● Development Economics

\\bartonwillmore\cfs\Cambridge\Files\31000 - 31999\31500-31599\31540 STEVENAGE TOWN CENTRE INVESTMENT PLAN\A4 - Drawings & Registers\Planning\31540 CE-P-04 Location Plan.dwg - A3

Check byDrawn by

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

31540

Stevenage Town Centre
Investment Plan

CE-P-04

Location Plan
Gunnels Wood Infrastructure
05.10.2020 1:12,500 @A3

-

ML AF

2000

100 500m

400

300

Site Boundary

LEGEND

Investment Theme 3:  Connectivity
3.4  Gunnels Wood Road infrastructure improvements - Part 1 (£2m) & Part 2 (£8m)

Gunnels Wood 
Road Infrastructure 
improvements
HCC, SBC & Herts LEP are 
proposing investment into the 
existing transport infrastructure 
on Gunnels Wood Road 
employment area to address 
identified capacity constraints 
that could limit new employment 
development.

Digital Infrastructure – 
hyperfast broadband
Feasibility study to assess 
what is needed in terms of 
infrastructure investment for the 
Town Centre and Gunnels Wood 
Road employment area to help 
accelerate new digital technology 
provision.

Cycling & Pedestrian Connectivity incl. Heritage Arts Trail
Stevenage already has very good cycling and pedestrian infrastructure, 
but parts have become fragmented and disconnected with 
redevelopment and with a lack of investment, parts are now considered 
unsafe.

A five-phase strategy is proposed. Progress is already underway 
with the first phase as part of the delivery of the Town Centre SG1 
redevelopment. This project aims to extend and build upon this 
momentum to deliver the next two phases, phases 2 and 3.

1 2

8

9

10

Page 16



6

2

4

5

Garden Square Commercial & Leisure
The delivery of a new Garden Square with cafés and bars, independent 
enterprise, co-working premises, a high-quality boutique hotel and 
a new night time economy, with homes above ground floor space 
overlooking the square. The square will support a wide range of 
year round outdoor events and activities. The project will also adapt 
currently vacant shopping units into an open plan independent food 
court/ market.

Town Enterprise Centre
New Enterprise Centre in the 
heart of the town centre with 
space for labs, workshops, co-
work/hot desks and meeting 
rooms through the use of digital 
creativity and technology to 
harness the strength of the 
existing life science, satellite and 
digital sectors.

Sport & Leisure Hub at 
Town Centre Gardens
A new consolidated state of 
the art Sport and Leisure Hub 
adjacent to the main town centre 
green space. New sports hall, 
fitness gym, 25 metre pool, 
teaching pool, café, car park.

A new focal point for the town, 
encouraging greater levels of 
participation in sport, delivering 
improvements in health and well-
being.

National New Towns 
Heritage Centre
New Heritage Centre 
celebrating Stevenage’s 
contribution to the 20th 
century urban planning 
movement and new models of 
urban development.

To be incorporated into the 
new Civic Hub as part of SG1

3 4

Stevenage
Marshgate CCaarrppaarrkk

Marshgate – Biotech Office 
& Key Worker Housing
A new mixed-use development 
on a key Town Centre site that 
will directly respond to the need 
for additional space (Office/
Tech Labs 76,437 sq.ft) to meet 
continued growth of Stevenage’s 
specialist bioscience cluster, 
whilst at the same time also 
meeting the need for local key 
worker housing on the site (69 
units). Delivery via SBC/Reef.

5

6

7

Page 17



“The plan is to expand, celebrate, 
and offer greater accessibility to 
Stevenage’s rich heritage, arts 
and culture. Stevenage will be 
celebrated as a cultural destination 
which will drive greater economic 
growth and well-being.”
Martha Lytton Cobbold 
Managing Director 
Lytton Enterprises Ltd./Knebworth Estates

“The Hertfordshire Chamber of Commerce 
fully support and endorse the Stevenage 
Town Investment Plan. It will help drive 
growth, entrepreneurship, and innovation 
plus inward investment and employment to 
Stevenage and the county”.
Briege Leahy - CEO Herts Chamber of Commerce

“For The Wine Society, reliant on a local 
workforce, these are exciting proposals 
that will enable local people with 
aspirations, to develop their capabilities 
and take advantage of the opportunities in 
Stevenage across a diverse and rich range 
of businesses”.
Steve Finlan  
Chief Executive 
The Wine Society

“I think the work on Stevenage is fascinating – 
such a diverse town with huge potential, whilst 
suffering some of the worst deprivation in the 
county. The way that pockets of innovation, 
creativity and wealth sit alongside poverty, lack 
of skills, teenage pregnancy, 3rd generation 
unemployment etc. has always been something 
I’ve been interested in. I went to school in 
Stevenage so saw first-hand what it was like 
for some of my friends and their families who 
were struggling. But I also saw how giving 
access to opportunities through education and 
employment could transform lives and break 
generational cycles”.
Anna Morrison CBE - Amazing Apprenticeships

“Based on the GSK campus, Stevenage 
Bioscience Catalyst is also home to the 
Cell & Gene Therapy Catapult, LifeArc, 
Cytiva and over 40 growing technology 
companies which together have raised 
over £1.6bn since 2012. Of this, 70% of the 
funding is for Cell and Gene technologies 
placing it at the centre of the largest 
Cell and Gene cluster in Europe. It has 
been estimated that there is potential 
within the cluster for over 250,000 sq 
ft of private sector funded development 
delivering 2,100 direct jobs over 10 years. 
The clear vision, strategy and delivery 
proposals put forwards by Stevenage 
Development Board as part of the Town 
Investment Plan will play a pivotal role in 
making this happen”.
Sally Ann Forsyth OBE MPhil, PhD, CGMA 
Chief Executive Officer 
Stevenage Bioscience Catalyst.

“Government, developers and investors 
must be brave and be prepared to 
think differently and work together to 
create outcomes that benefit everyone. 
Unlocking growth in the UK and levelling 
up our towns is critical to our long-
term success as a country. Our town 
centres can be enablers of this future 
growth, and the investment, design and 
development decisions made today 
will set the trajectory for a decade of 
recovery. I hope – and believe  – that our 
plans to transform Stevenage will see a 
change in the way we deliver town centre 
regeneration across the country.”
Mark Reynolds  
CEO Mace,  
Developer for SG1 in Stevenage town centre

“It’s been great to see a high level of 
engagement and commitment from 
educational institutions and employers 
in supporting Stevenage to open up 
opportunities for further learning and 
progression into skilled employment. I am 
delighted that Improving skills, boosting 
business and opening new educational 
pathways for young people is one of 
the main focuses of Stevenage’s ‘Town 
Investment Plan.”
Kit Davies 
Principal and CEO 
North Herts College

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES - STEVENAGE DEVELOPMENT BOARD - 27 OCTOBER 2020 / MATTERS ARISING
	4 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND OPENNESS
	6 TOWN DEAL - FEEDBACK FROM DISCUSSIONS WITH GOVERNMENT

